
REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS  
TO PROVIDE SCANNING SERVICES  

FOR THE CITY OF STOCKTON, CALIFORNIA 
(PUR 16-005) 

 
From: Rich Jenness [mailto:richj@softfile.com]  
Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2016 4:29 PM 
To: Mary Garcia <Mary.Garcia@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: Tracy Labarber <Tracy.Labarber@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: questions for RFP for Scanning Services 
 
Hi Mary, 
 
Most of my questions were answered during the walkthrough, but I do have a few 
additional questions: 
 

1. How many users will need access to the vendor-provided cloud-based image 
viewing system?   
 
City will be custodian of the documents in cloud-based system ie. 
Sharepoint or Accela.  Vendor needs to provide scanned images to 
Sharepoint and the City will establish connection to Accela.  Therefore, the 
number of users is not relevant to vendor. 

 
2. Which internet browsers will the users use to access the cloud-based image 

viewing system?    
 
All mainstream browsers are acceptable i.e. Edge, Internet Explorer, 
Chrome, and Firefox. 

 
3. The RFP calls for the vendor to pick up boxes from ‘various locations’.  In 

addition to the CDD office at 425 N El Dorado, what are the other locations?  Will 
there be any outside of the City of Stockton city limits? 
 
For clarification, the documents are not located at 425 N El Dorado Street 
but instead are located at 345 N. El Dorado Street (Permit Center across the 
street from the above address).  All documents not onsite are at Pacific 
Storage which is located in Stockton: 
 
Pacific Storage Company   Pacific Storage Company 
523 N Hunter Street    607 Carlton Ave 
Stockton, CA   95202    Stockton, CA   95203 

 
Thank you for your time! 
 
Rich Jenness 

 



SoftFile 
209 Commerce Circle 
Sacramento CA 95815 
916-927-4211 x 238  

 
 
 
 

From: Ralph Petty 
Sent: Thursday, October 13, 2016 1:48 PM 
To: 'Tracy.Labarder@stocktonca.gov' <Tracy.Labarder@stocktonca.gov>; 
'Mary.Garcia@strocktonca.gov' <Mary.Garcia@strocktonca.gov> 
Subject: Informatix Questions for RFP_PUR_16-005 Final 
 
Dear Ms. LaBarber and Ms. Garcia: 
 
In accordance with the requirements set forth in the above-referenced RFP PUR 16-
005, Scanning Services for the City of Stockton, please find attached questions 
Informatix Inc. submits for clarification. 
 
Informatix, Inc. is excited to have the opportunity to respond to your RFP. Please feel 
free to contact me at 916-830-1400. 
 
1. Is there an overall budget for this project? 

 
Yes. 
 

2. Has the City contracted for similar services in the past? If so, could the City provide 
a copy of the contract and corresponding pricing? 

 
Yes and that service was performed over a decade ago.  No. 
 

3. Section 2.1.A.2. Could the City provide more specifics as to the pre-production 
preparation and packaging involved for transfer to the Vendor’s worksite? How will 
the files be presented once the Vendor arrives onsite? 

 
City will box and inventory all building and planning files including those in 
file cabinets.  Rolled flat format sheets will be placed in container and 
inventoried.  Folded large format sheets will be boxed and inventoried.  
Microfiche and film will be boxed and inventoried based on description listed 
on drawer face or film holder.  Boxes or containers will be numbered and 
inventory list will be provided.  
 

4. Section 3.0.5. As a privately-held company, we consider our financial information as 
a trade secret and thus request them to be considered confidential and request them 



to be held from public disclosure. In response to this requirement, may we provide 
our financial statement in a separately, sealed envelope marked “Confidential”? 

 
Yes 
 

5. How are the items grouped and sorted by type. 
 

Grouped by permit type and some may be in numerical sequence. 
 

6. How many permits are there by type? 
 
Not known. 

 
a. Paper: permits per foot or per box (literally count the number of folders in a foot) 

 
Not known. 
 

b. Engineering: rolls per square foot typically represents the number of permits 
 
Not known. 
 

c. Film: permits per roll or addresses per roll or images per permit 
 

Not known. 
 

d. Fiche: they have stated 812k images and 135k sheets, or 6 images per fiche. 
Most commonly there is one permit per fiche. Are they all 35mm, 16mm, dual 
16/35 or a mix? 

 
Not known. 

 
7. How heavily stapled are the paper permits? Are they mostly loose in folders or a 

bunch of 2 and 3 page documents? 
 

Not sure.  This can vary by the person that originally compiled the file, can be 
dependent on the type of document, and the size of the file can vary 
depending on the type or complexity of the permit. 
 

8. Is there a vendor that has scanned for the City in the past? Has any vendor assisted 
or advised the City on the specifications related to this procurement?  

 
Yes this department has had documents scanned by an outside vendor in the 
past.  No. 

 
9. Can the City please confirm if a Letter of Interest is required in Section 2.2 as well as 

a Cover Letter as in Section 3.0.1? 



 
A Cover Letter is required, but no need for Letter of Interest. 

 
10. Can the City please confirm if references are required in Sections 2.2 and Section 

3.0.4? 
 

Yes references are required. 
 
11. Proponent’s Checklist, Item 1: Can the City please confirm that the proposal 

documents needed for submission are on pages 25 to 27 and not pages 23 to 25? 
 
For this RFP the only forms needed are pages 25 – 27, The Proposal Document, 
the Proponent’s Agreement and the Non-collusion Affidavit. 
 

12. Proponent’s Checklist, third line: We are unable to locate the “Proponent’s Fee 
Schedule” form. Could the City please provide? 

 
There is no specific form provided so that you can freely use your company’s 
fee schedule format. 

 
13. One of the evaluation questions asks if the vendor is in California. Is this a 

preference for the City? Since there is already a financial discount of 2-5% for local 
vendors, what significance will be applied in evaluating the vendor scanning 
location? 

 
Yes, to allow for the ability to return documents quickly should the City need 
them is very important.  The rating criteria has not been determined at this time. 
 

14. Will the City consider an approach for onsite scanning if vendor staff and equipment 
can be housed in the space of one or two cubicles? 

 
No, after consideration our building will be undergoing a remodel and space 
will not be available. 
 

15. Can the City advise and identify evaluation weight as it pertains to pricing vs. other 
evaluation factors?  
 
No.  The rating criteria has not been determined at this time. 

 
16. Will it be acceptable for vendors to propose more than one approach to meeting the 

City’s requirements, or an overall approach with several options for the City’s 
consideration? 
 
The City would welcome all options as long as pricing is stated for all 
approaches or options offered. 
 



17. Please confirm that vendors do not need to preserve any document level separation, 
indexing or document type identification, that they City desires one file per permit. 
Also please confirm that each file cannot exceed 500MB and if it does it should be 
sequentially split.  

 
The City prefers one file for building and planning documents.  A second 
corresponding file may be needed for any rolled large format or folded large 
format sheets with a suffix denoting ‘_plan’.  Should the file be split due to file 
size the subsequent documents should be named by permit number as well as 
contain a split file name. 

 
18. The SOW states “Documents must be scanned in a format and utilize an indexing 

system that will be able to integrate into this program.” Please confirm what the 
requirements are for formatting and import into the Accela system. E.g., is this a 
simple non-proprietary image file and a simple index list (CSV, XLS or similar) or 
something proprietary? 

 
Not proprietary. 

 
19. Item 2.1.a.1 in the SOW states:  “Medium for delivery should external hard drive 

(solid state) and cloud based retrieval site.” For the volume of information described, 
SSD drives are extremely costly and would require multiple drives. Would the City 
consider more cost reasonable SATA drives available in 4TB powered over USB 
and up to 8TB with external power?  

 
Any of the above solutions would be acceptable.   

 
20. Is the cloud based retrieval site expected to be used for data requests or data 

delivery? Please confirm that the City is not looking for an interim cloud based 
search and retrieval system. 

 
No the City has Sharepoint and is not looking for an interim cloud based 
search and retrieval system.   

 
21. Does the transfer medium need to be encrypted? 
 

No.   
 
22. Item 2.1.13.a states “Any discrepancies between the City’s inventory transmittal and 

the items received by the Vendor are to be resolved within ten calendar days.”  With 
>300 boxes of paper, 65k drawings, plus 135k+ sheets of fiche and film it is not 
possible to compare anything more than a box list within ten days. What level of 
detail is expected to be present in the City’s inventory transmittal? Is the City 
performing a detailed review of the collection of assets to confirm which permits are 
present prior to the vendor arriving on site? 
 



The City will provide an inventory that has the permit number corresponding 
to the files in container or box.  

 
23.  Item 2.1.a.2 identifies that vendors are to package and index all items on site. If the 

City does not already have a custody list at the permit level, is it acceptable to 
perform document custody at the box level for paper and batch level for fiche, reel 
level for film?  

 
Yes, after careful consideration the City has decided to box and inventory all 
documents. 
 

24. Can we assume that the 115 boxes stored off site will not need to be reboxed? 
 

Yes, although I have not seen the stored files, generally the vendor requires all 
City files to be boxed prior to shipping.  There may be some plans that are not 
boxed and may be in plastic wrap. 
 

a. Will any fees to extract the boxes will be paid by the City?  
 
Yes. 
 

b. Will vendors need to index these on site at Pacific Storage? 
 

No.  These boxes were shipped prior to my arrival in this department 
but standard City practice is to index files prior to shipping them to 
Pacific Storage.  In addition, the City will retrieve these documents 
from storage and will have them onsite for scanning vendor to pick 
up. 

 
25.  Please confirm 2.1.b.1 is a description of the types of assets quantified in the 

following items 2-9 and not an additional collection of assets. 
 

Yes that is correct. 
 
26. Item 2.1.b.2 identifies some of the assets are in boxes and others are in cabinets. 

Can the City identify how many are already boxed and if vendors will be required to 
rebox these? For the items in cabinets can the City identify (1) how many cabinet 
drawers, (2) if the drawers are full, or (3) how many linear feet of documents are 
contained in cabinets? 

 
The City will box up any files in filing cabinets. No and No.  Vendors were 
shown file cabinets during job walk (not a huge number of file cabinets 
involved).  No idea how many linear feet of documents contained in cabinets. 

 
27. The City uses the term 600k pages:  does this estimate of 600k pages include 

images from the backsides of pieces of paper or could the scanning effort result in 



more than 600k images if backside images are considered? What percent of items 
will contain an image on the backside? 

 
The 600k is just an estimate.  There could be printing or images on the 
backside of the page and yes this would result in more than 600k.  If the City 
were to guess it would not be more than 20%.  Most of the documents are 
created with printing only on a single page.  The exception would be mainly 
for documents that are bound.  

 
28. The City lists 600k pages. Please confirm this does not include the 115 boxes at 

pacific storage. Is it reasonable to assume 2300 images per bankers box? 
 
I really don’t know how many pages are officially in this scope of work.  The 
600k is only an estimate.  The City is not expecting to have the vendor cost out 
the project based on an unknown number but to give a unit cost for the various 
document sizes, media type, and extended price for the estimated amount listed 
in the RFP (similar to the table in question 58 below).  Not sure how many 
images would be contained in a bankers box. 

 
29. How are the paper files grouped and organized, by permit or by address? 
 

Primarily by permit number if the documents are related to building activity.  
Planning files may have some documents with a Subdivision or Project name. 
 

a. Is the permit number and/or address on a folder tab and/or elsewhere? 
 
Permit number could be located anywhere on the page. 

 
30. How are the rolled drawings grouped and organized?  
 

Random order with no grouping. 
 

a. Is the permit number and/or address visible without unrolling the 
drawings? 
 
Most of the drawings have a toe tag that identifies the permit 
number. 

 
31. Is it typical that each rolled set of drawings represents a single permit and that these 

could be a small as a few drawings or as big as 500 drawings or multiple drawing 
sets for a single and large commercial permit?  
 
Yes, but some larger projects may have multiple rolls per permit number. 
 

a. Can the City identify how many rolls of drawings are present in the 
collection? 



 
No. 

 
32. Can the City estimate the average number of permits per box or per linear foot?  

 
No. 
 
 

a. Does the City know how many permits are represented in the paper 
collection? 
 
No. 
 

 
33. Is there a clear delineation between the fiche, film and hardcopy documents? For 

example do permits from current back to 1990 exist on paper, 1970-1989 exist on 
film and earlier than 1970 of film? 

 
It is somewhat as you have described but the film files represent only residential 
permits that overlap some of the time periods covered by the fiche.  Not sure if 
the years you have listed correctly represent CDD files but the concept is fairly 
accurate. 
 

a. Can the same permit exist on more than one medium? 
 
Not to my knowledge. 

 
34. Is the roll film 16mm or 35mm or a mix? If the latter can the City identify the 

distribution and an estimated number of frames and permits on each type of roll? 
 
Not sure, if looking at the size of the reel CDD has two different sizes, it may 
be a mix. 

 
35. Are the rolls sorted by permit number or other and do the rolls have a label that 

identifies the range? 
 

By permit number and they have a date range.  Yes they have a label with 
metadata. 

 
36. Are the rolls blipped with single or double level blipping to identify where a new 

permit begins? If not is there something that identifies where a new permit begins 
like a film gap, a target (with or without permit number) or filming the folder cover? 
 
No knowledge, CDD does not have a device to view the film. 

 



37. Are the fiche sorted by permit or by address or a mix of both? What is imaged on the 
fiche titlebar?  
 
Permit number only. 

 
38. Is the information typed or handwritten and does it include permit and address? 

Typed, permit number only. 
 
39. Is the titlebar translucent or opaque? 

 
Opaque. 

 
40. Do the fiche contain 16mm, 35mm or are they dual format or a mix of all three? If the 

latter can the City estimate the quantity of each? 
 

Unknown.  No. 
 
41. When a permit spans multiple fiche are the fiche sequentially numbered so that the 

vendor can insure proper order of the images? 
 

Yes, i.e 1 of 5, 2 of 5, etc. 
 
42. The City has identified 6 images per sheet of fiche typically. Since a 16mm fiche can 

contain 40+ images is the City stating that the fiche are only 35mm or that the fiche 
are mostly empty (only the top row of 16mm filled)? 

 
No qualified to determine whether fiche is 16mm or 35mm. 

 
43. Can the City attest to the quality of the fiche and film? 
 

No. 
 
44. Was it filmed by the city or by multiple vendors over many years? 
 

Outside vendors created the film.  Not sure if the City used more than one 
vendor. 

 
45. Is the City experiencing degradation from vinegar syndrome or redox and if so is the 

film sticking as it unrolls? 
 

No way to view film so not sure what the condition is the film rolls.  
 
46. Has the City had frequent challenges reproducing a legible copy either from film or 

fiche? 
 



No issues with fiche but as previously stated no device to view or print film 
images. 

 
47. Does the City have an electronic list of permit numbers related to address which can 

be available to the vendor?  
 

Yes, the City can provide a list of permit numbers related to addresses. 
 

48. Can the City provide an example of permit number format? 
 

Yes, permit numbers vary from planning projects to building as well as over 
time they have been modified. 

 
49. Can the paper files include folded large format, pictures, CDs, 11x17, etc.? 
 

Yes. 
 
50. Are the 2540 pages of folded large format stored separately or is this an estimate of 

the sheets that might be discovered in the paper files? 
 

Both. 
 
51. Does the City require that vendors scan color pages (and photos) in color or 

grayscale? Is the City looking for vendors to provide recommendations and options 
with our response?  

 
Grayscale is acceptable as long as it does not compromise the intelligibility. 

 
52. Regarding skew, is it acceptable to allow for up to 2 degrees of skew? 
 

Yes. 
 
53. Please confirm that vendors should implement automated processes to reduce 

speckles and that vendors are not required to manually remove individual specks, 
stray marks, etc. with an image editor. 

 
Yes. 

 
54. Item 2.1.d.3 requires 300dpi for all fiche and film. It has been our experience that 

200dpi gray is proven more legible than 300dpi monochrome and scans much 
faster.  

 
Not sure of this process so City will ask for a sample from vendor. 

 
a. Has the City performed any testing of fiche and film resolutions?  

 



No. 
 

b. Would the City consider changing this requirement to allow 200dpi gray?  
If not, can vendors provide pricing for both 300dpi and 200dpi resolutions 
and bit depth? 

 
Yes, the City will consider once shown samples by the vendor for 
both dpi resolutions.  Yes vendor can provide pricing for both. 

 
55. The City has indicated duplex scanning and has required blank pages be excluded. 

Is it acceptable to the City that vendors use the industry standard automated blank 
backside removal process in lieu of the much more costly manual review and 
removal of blank pages? 

 
Yes. 

 
56. Item 2.4.14 asks for costs to reassemble the assets while 2.4.20 asks for costs to 

shred the documents. Can the City clarify if it expected that some assets will be 
reassembled (replacing staples) and others will be shredded? 

 
Eventually all original documents will be shredded once the City has performed 
quality control.  The City does not expect documents to be reassembled or 
staples to be replaced.  If documents are returned CDD would expect them to 
be in the same order as they were boxed. 

 
57. Item 2.4.21 lists questions about the environment. Are some of these items 

disqualifying and can the City list their minimum requirements?  
 

Not necessarily.  Documents need to be secure and safely stored so damage, 
fire, or other means of destruction does not occur.  

 
58. So that vendor pricing can be normalized and compared, can the City consider 

revising section 2.3 to include a spreadsheet similar to the following: 
 

Item 
Unit 
Type  Units  Unit Cost  Extended 

8x11 scanning  image  750000      

11x17 scanning  image  50000      

24x36 scanning  image  58000      

>24x36 scanning  image  5000      

8x11 scanning color  image  30000      

11x17 scanning color  image  20000      

24x36 scanning color  image  3000      

>24x36 scanning color  image  1000      

Fiche Scanning  image  812400      



Film Scanning  image  920000      

Indexing  permit  120000      

         Total Estimate    

              

              

Optional Items             

Color Slides             

Color Photos             

Color Strip Film              

Floppy, CD or DVD             
 
 
There is no standardized proposal template but this format seems very 
reasonable. 
 
59. Is it expected that if a permit has items stored in more than one format (paper, rolled 

drawings, fiche and film) that these be combined into a single pdf based on 
comparing the permit number? 

 
The City prefers one file for building and planning documents.  A second 
corresponding file may be needed for any rolled large format or folded large 
format sheets with a suffix denoting ‘_plan’.  Should the file be split due to file 
size the subsequent documents should be named by permit number as well as 
contain a split file name.  There should not be any duplication of permit numbers 
with fiche or film.  This is only likely to occur with rolled or flat folded sheets 
and maps. 

 
60. Since reassembly impacts document preparation and impacts the scanning process 

in addition to the time spent replacing binding and staples, is it acceptable to simply 
place assets back into folders and boxes in order in lieu of replacing binding? Can 
we provide reassembly as an option so the City can consider the cost impact of this 
process? 

 
Yes.   

 
 

61. Pg. 4, Section 1.4:  Note that a bidder is obligated to enter into a contract with the 
City if the bidder’s proposal is accepted. The city’s sample contract was not included 
in the RFP materials, although a number of business and legal terms and conditions 
appear. Will the City provide the actual sample contract for review prior to the bid 
award? 

 
Yes, I have attached a sample contract to PUR 16-005 attachments. 
 



62. Pg. 8, Section 1.15:  Will the City allow the awarded contractor to include the 
following exclusion from liability and a cap on direct damages? 
 
No. 
 
“Limitation of Liability: Neither party shall be liable for any indirect, incidental, special 
or consequential damages under this Agreement, including without limitation lost 
profits, lost goodwill, or lost business, even is such party has been advised of the 
possibility of such damages. The maximum liability of either party shall not exceed 
the amount of fees paid to contractor by City under the SoW giving rise to the claim.”   
 
No. 
 

63. Pg. 9, Section 1.20:  Will the City remove the “most favored customer” clause?  We 
request that it be stricken in entirety. 

 
No. 
 

64. Pg. 10, Section 1.26:  Can the City please clarify what type of documents, products 
or systems it would expect to own as a result of a contract for scanning services?  If 
the clause does not apply, we request that it be deleted or marked “not applicable”.” 

 
 

This will be evaluated on a case by case basis, depending on what the 
proposals offer. 
 

Very truly yours, 
 
 
Michele Blanc 
Chief Operating Officer 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 
From: John Adams [mailto:john.adams@skysite.com]  
Sent: Monday, October 10, 2016 12:11 PM 
To: Mary Garcia <Mary.Garcia@stocktonca.gov> 
Subject: Questions on RFP PUR 16-005 
 
Hi Mary,  
 
I have a few questions regarding RFP PUR 16-005. 



 
1.) On page 1 of the Notice of Inviting Proposals it references Proposal Forms being 

available on the City’s website. Is there a standardized proposal template that the 
City is requiring bidders to fill out and submit? 
 
For this RFP the only forms needed are pages 25 – 27, The Proposal 
Document, the Proponent’s Agreement and the Non-collusion Affidavit.  
There is no standardized proposal template. 
 

2.) What resolution does the City want the large format drawings scanned at 200 
dpi, 300 dpi, 400 dpi?   
 
The City will rely on vendor to propose the best solution. 
 

3.) Are the large format scans within a permit folder being renamed, or is the permit 
number on the folder containing the scans all that’s required?    
 

The City prefers one file name for type of building and planning permits.  A 
second corresponding file may be needed for any rolled large format or folded 
large format sheets with a suffix denoting ‘_plan’.  Should the file be split due 
to file size the subsequent documents should be named by permit number as 
well as contain a split file name. 

 
 
 
 

 
Please let me know. 
 
 
Warm regards, 
 
 
_________________________________________ 

 

John Adams 
Technology Solutions Constultant 
 
john.adams@skysite.com 
916-494-8808 
www.skysite.com 
 
Click here for a better way to manage your information. 

 
 

From: Karen Wagoner [mailto:Karen.Wagoner@informatixinc.com]  
Sent: Friday, October 07, 2016 3:15 PM 



To: Tracy Labarber <Tracy.Labarber@stocktonca.gov>; Mary Garcia 
<Mary.Garcia@stocktonca.gov> 
Cc: procurement@informatixinc.com 
Subject: City of Stockton RFP for Scanning Services PUR 16-005 
 
Greetings: 
 
In accordance with RFP PUR 16-005 page 5, Informatix, Inc. submits the following 
questions: 
 

1. Will the City of Stockton publish any questions asked and answered on any 
private tour so that the information shared on a private tour is disclosed to all 
vendors? (Typically agencies on a private walk through will not answer vendor 
questions but ask they be submitted in writing after the private tour.)   

The Job Walk Questions will be answered and posted on BidFlash 

2. With the volume and detail of questions there will likely be questions that are 
misunderstood or those that the agency does not know the answer. Will the City 
allow for a clarification period after agency answers are posted? This is not a 
period for new questions but rather to clarify the City’s answers. Will the City 
allow two days for vendors to ask clarifying questions?   

No 

3. Vendors cannot begin a detailed RFP response until questions are answered and 
the scope of services are fully understood. Based on the current schedule this 
would allow only four business days to prepare a response, finalize pricing, 
produce the response and ensure a timely delivery to the City. Would the City 
consider extending the RFP response data by at least two weeks past any final 
agency answers to posed questions or clarification to vendor questions? 

No, there is a timeline that the City must follow.  

Thank you for your consideration. We look forward to your responses posted on 
www.stocktonca.gov/bidflash. 
 
Please note that the Informatix point of contact email is 
Procurement@Informatixinc.com. 
 
Karen Wagoner 
Business Analyst 
Informatix, Inc. 
2485 Natomas Park Drive Suite 430 
Sacramento, CA. 95833 
(916) 830 -1948 



PUR 16‐005 Questions Asked in the Mandatory Job Walk  
 

1. Will sample boxes be available for inspection? 
 
Yes, vendors were able to view the interior of file cabinets, boxes, and bins 
with sample documents but the documents can only be seen on the job walk. 

 
2. Will Boxes need to be store for up to 120 days to give staff time for quality 

check? 
 
This specification was put in the RFP to allow the City of Stockton to perform 
quality control of the documents.  If the vendor is not shredding the 
documents as part of the contract then the vendor will be returning the files 
to CDD and the storage requirement would not be enforced.  If the vendor is 
going to be shredding the documents then the 120 days would be required. 
 

3. Will a permit numbers system need to be continued? 
 
Yes, all files will need to be named using the permit number. 
 

4. What percent of files are black and white? 
 
Almost all building files can be scanned in black and white.  Planning files 
have color maps and other documents where color would be essential to 
maintain the integrity of document.  There is no way to accurately estimate 
the percentage and guesstimate would be 10% percent.  
 

5. Is Accela a cloud based system? 
 
Yes 
 

6. Is Accela available for an instant upload? 
 
No. 
 

7. Data conversion? 
 
Our Accela implementation consultant will be doing a final round of data 
conversion from out old system.  We anticipate this to be completed 
sometime in November.  
 

8. Is it possible to get a data dump from Accela with addresses for cross reference? 
 
Once the conversion is completed we will request a database dump from 
Accela.  This database is in Oracle format and barring any restrictions, we 



should be able to at the very least query and give you information for cross 
referencing if not the whole database. 
 
 

9. Will you want an external location for electronic files? 
 
The City will expect files to be uploaded to Sharepoint or an external hard 
drives. 
 

10. Is off shore storage of files allowed? 
 
No 
 

11. What type of documents are in the Banker Boxes? 
 
Same as what was seen on the job walk. 
 

12. Will the documents need to be placed in the same box and in the same order as 
received? 
 
The City does not expect reassembly to entail binding, staples, clips etc.  
Files will need to be kept in the order they were box and scanned.  If returned 
they should be placed in the folder/box/bin etc that they were packaged in 
for pick up. 
 

13. How will the retention work?  Must we keep the documents for 120 days? 
 
This specification was put in the RFP to allow the City of Stockton to perform 
quality control of the documents.  If the vendor is not shredding the 
documents as part of the contract then the vendor will be returning the files 
to CDD and the storage requirement would not be enforced.  If the vendor is 
going to be shredding the documents then the 120 days would be required. 
 

14. What types of documents will be greater than 500MG? 
 
Plan drawings, color maps, and large planning projects may exceed 
500MG.  
 

15. Acela is that a cloud solution? How will we be able to upload docs to Acela?   Or 
will you convert docs to Acela? 
 
The City will expect files to be uploaded to Sharepoint or an external hard 
drives.  The City will transfer files to Accela. 
 

16. Are all your permit documents on Acela yet? 



 
No, a second conversion is scheduled to take place this month but the 
majority of permits have been converted. 
 

17. Will we upload the scanned docs on Acela or another place? 
 
Accela or Sharepoint will be the repository for documents.  This will be 
discussed further in the contract phase. 
 

18. So far I have not seen any color documents, Are there any?  Do you prefer them 
to be in color? 
 
Yes, CDD does have color documents.  Those documents that are mainly 
found in maps, elevations of buildings, color photographs, and some files 
have color charts and graphs. 
 

19. How many documents are color?  What percentage of documents are in color? 
 
A very low percentage of documents are in color, the City guesstimates 
less than 10%. 
 

20. The documents which are labeled other agencies are Environmental Report 
documents.  Will they need to be scanned? 
 
Any documents that are labeled other agencies not going to be scanned.  
Those documents were hard copies that were set aside should those 
agencies need a copy.  
 

21. After this RFP is awarded, when do you expect the work to start? 
 
We can estimate within 4 - 6 months of the award. 
 

22. If during the process of writing the RFP, would we be able to view the documents 
again? 
 
No. 

 
 
POSTED 10-12-16 
 
DURING THE MANDATORY JOB WALK, A STATEMENT WAS MADE BY THE CITY THAT 

DOCUMENTS CAN BE VIEWED AGAIN BY THOSE IN ATTENDANCE.  UPON FURTHER REVIEW 

AND EVALUATION OF LOGISTICS, THE CITY IS RETRACTING THIS STATEMENT.   THE CITY HAS 

NOT AND WILL NOT ALLOW FURTHER REVIEW OF THE DOCUMENTS. 



 
POSTED 09-29-16 
 
1.  Communication – please send your communication via email. 
 
2. Questions – the last day to make inquiries is October 13, 2016. 
 
3.  Answers – clarifications and answers will be posted by October 20, 2016. 
 
4. Bids due- promptly by 2:00 pm, Thursday, October 27th, 2016, City Clerk’s Office. 
 


